
Page 1 of 4 APPROVED– Regular Meeting Minutes 
2016-09-13 Regular Meeting of the Board 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

MINUTES 
School Board Office Tuesday September 13, 2016 

7:00 pm 
PRESENT 

TRUSTEES: Q. De Courcy, M. Teindl, J. Struck, R. Farrell 

STAFF: T. Taylor, M. Grenier, L. Newman 

OTHERS: J. Trainor, R. Bardati, D. Bond 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

Q. De Courcy called the meeting to order at 7:04pm 

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:

Moved by R. Farrell seconded by M. Teindl that the agenda be adopted as presented. 
CARRIED 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES:

Moved by J. Struck seconded by R. Farrell that the minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 28, 2016 
be adopted as presented. 

CARRIED 

4. PRESENTATIONS
Nil

5. DISPOSITION OF PREVIOUS PRESENTATIONS
Nil

6. FINANCIAL UPDATE: David Bond – KPMG

a) David Bond reviewed and provided a high-level overview of the 2015-2016 Audited Financial
Statements on behalf of Susan Brenna-Smith.

David Bond presented the Audit Findings Report as prepared by KPMG. 



Page 2 of 4 APPROVED– Regular Meeting Minutes 
2016-09-13 Regular Meeting of the Board 

Moved by J. Struck seconded by M. Teindl that the Board of Education of School District 10 
(Arrow Lakes) approve the 2015-2016 Audited Financial Statements as prepared by Susan 
Brenna-Smith, Director of Finance and as attached.  

CARRIED 

Moved by R. Farrell seconded by M. Teindl that the Board of Education of School District 10 
(Arrow Lakes) approve the 2015-2016 Audit Findings Report as prepared and presented by 
KPMG.  

CARRIED 

7. QUESTIONS REGARDING FINANCIAL
Nil

8. REPORTS

a) Chairperson (Q. De Courcy):
i. Report attached

b) Education Partnership Committee
No recommendations.

c) Parent Advisory Council / Trustee Liaison Reports:

i) Southern Zone
No report

ii) Nakusp Elementary School
No report

iii) Lucerne Elementary-Secondary School
No report

iv) Nakusp Secondary School
No report

v) District Parent Advisory Council
No report

vi) CUPE/Board Liaison
No report

vii) ALTA/Board Liaison Meeting
No report

viii) Student Council/Student Voice Liaison
No report



Page 3 of 4 APPROVED - Regular Meeting Minutes 
2016-09-13 Regular Meeting of the Board 

ix) Occupational Health and Safety Committee
No report

x) Chamber of Commerce

Nakusp:

New Denver/Silverton:

xi) Strong Start Centres

 NES Strong Start report attached

 M. Teindl reported that a Dental Hygienist will be visiting the NES Strong Start
Thursday Sept 22nd

xii) Arrow Lakes Aboriginal Educational Advisory Council
No report

d) Branch / BCSTA / BCPSEA

i) Branch: KBB AGM Sept 16-17 

ii) BCSTA: No report 

iii) BCPSEA:  No report

e) Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer: (T. Taylor)
i. The Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer Report was presented at the Education

Partnership Committee Meeting.  A copy of this report has been attached.

9. OLD BUSINESS:

a) Policy Committee Updates
The following policies were presented at the June 28th Regular Meeting of the Board by
Notice of Motion.

Moved by M. Teindl seconded by R. Farrell that the Board of Education of School District 
10 (Arrow Lakes) approve the abandonment of policy 4400 (n 520) Professional 
Development at the September 13, 2016 Regular Meeting of the Board as recommended 
by the Policy Committee.   

CARRIED 

Moved by J. Struck seconded by M. Teindl that the Board of Education of School District 10 
(Arrow Lakes) approve revisions to policy 370 Field Trips at the September 13, 2016 Regular 
Meeting of the Board as recommended by the Policy Committee and as presented.   

CARRIED 



Page 4 of 4 APPROVED – Regular Meeting Minutes 
2016-09-13 Regular Meeting of the Board 

Further review and consultation of Policy 412 Evaluation of the Superintendent/Secretary-
Treasurer at the 2016-2017 Strategic Planning Session for the SD10 Board of Education (and 
Policy Committee) conceded that no further changes were required to the revised policy and 
that the policy be brought forward at the September 13-2016 meeting for approval.  

Moved by J. Struck seconded by R. Farrell That the Board of Education of School District 10 
(Arrow Lakes) approve revisions to policy 412 – Evaluation of the 
Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer at the September 13, 2016 Regular Meeting of the 
Board as recommended by the Policy Committee and as presented.  

CARRIED 

10. NEW BUSINESS:

a) 2016-2017 School Enhancement Program
This information was covered as a part of the Superintendents Report.

b) Notice of Special Meeting – September 27, 2016 – To approve the 5 Year Capital Plan
i. Capital Plan submissions are due by September 30th and in the absence of the Director of

Finance a Special Meeting is required.

11. NEXT MEETING DATES:

a) Education Partnership Committee Meeting: October 11th, 2016 at 6:00pm

b) Regular Meeting of the Board: October 11th, 2016 at 7:00pm

12. QUESTIONS FROM PUBLIC:

Discussion was had regarding the next OH+S Meeting. 

13. ADJOURNMENT:

R. Farrell adjourned the meeting at 8:09 pm 

___________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Q. De Courcy    T. Taylor 
Chairperson Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer 













































































School District No. 10 
(Arrow Lakes) 
 

Audit Findings Report  

 
September 13, 2016 

kpmg.ca/audit 



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 2 

 

 

  

Table of Contents 
Executive summary 3 

Areas of focus 5 

Critical accounting estimates 6 

Adjustments and differences 7 

Appendices 8 

Appendix 1: Internal control over financial reporting  

Appendix 2: Current developments  

Appendix 3: Audit trends  

Appendix 4: Required communications  

Appendix 5: Audit Quality and Risk Management  
 

The contacts at KPMG in 

connection with this report 

are: 

Dave Bond, CPA, CA, CBV 

Lead Audit Engagement 

Partner  

Tel: 250-979-7154 

dpbond@kpmg.ca 

 

Marina Warrender, CPA, CA 

Engagement Manager 

Tel: 250-979-7193 

mwarrender@kpmg.ca  

 



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 3 

 

* This Audit Findings Report should not be used for any other purpose or by anyone other than the Board of Education. KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability for 

loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this Audit Findings Report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any 

third party or for any other purpose. 

Executive summary 
 

Purpose of this report*  

The purpose of this Audit Findings Report is to 

assist you, as a member of the Board, in your 

review of the results of our audit of the financial 

statements of School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) 

as at and for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Materiality 

We determine materiality in order to plan and 

perform the audit and to evaluate the effects of 

identified misstatements on the audit and of any 

uncorrected misstatements on the financial 

statements. For the 2016 audit, we have 

determined materiality of $210,000. 

 

Areas of focus and 
results  

We identified certain areas of audit focus, which 

included future employee benefits and payroll and 

related costs, which were addressed in our audit.   

Key audit findings are summarized on page 5. 

Adjustments and 
differences  

Adjustments and differences include corrected and 

uncorrected adjustments to financial statement 

presentation and disclosure arising during our 

audit and communicated to management.  

Adjustments and differences are summarized on 

page 7. 

 

Independence 

As required by professional standards, we have 

considered all relationships between KPMG and 

the School District that may have a bearing on 

independence. We confirm that we are 

independent with respect to the District within the 

meaning of the relevant rules and related 

interpretations prescribed by the relevant 

professional bodies in Canada and any applicable 

legislation or regulation from July 1, 2015 up to the 

date of this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 4 

 

 

Executive summary 
 

Finalizing the audit  

As of September 13, 2016, we have substantially 

completed the audit of the financial statements, 

with the exception of certain remaining procedures, 

which include amongst others: 

– completion of subsequent event review 

procedures 

– obtaining signed management representation 

letter 

– completing our discussions with the Board ; 

– obtaining evidence of the Board’s approval of 

the financial statements. 

 

In addition to our audit report on the District’s 

financial statements, we will be completing other 

reporting to the Office of the Auditor General for 

the purposes of their reliance on our audit opinion 

in the audit of the summary financial statements of 

the Province.

 

Significant accounting 
estimates 

Significant accounting estimates are summarized 

in note 2 (l) to the financial statements and include 

the estimated employee future benefits, tangible 

capital asset amortization rates and estimates for 

contingent liabilities.  

Overall, we are satisfied with the reasonability of 

significant accounting estimates.  

 

 

Significant accounting 
policies and practices  

There have been no new or changes to, significant 

accounting policies and practices to bring to your 

attention impacting the 2016 financial statements.

  



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 5 

 

 

Areas of focus 

Areas of focus Our significant findings from the audit 

Employees future benefits - 
Actuarial testing 

The School District is involved with an employee future benefit plan, which is disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements. 
The School District’s liabilities are based on an independent actuarial valuation with a full valuation being required every three 
years. The current year required such a full valuation, meaning all input data were updated and not extrapolated.  

The liability relating to the employee future benefit as at June 30, 2016 is $176,612 (2015 - $165,606).  

We reviewed and performed audit procedures in relation to the various actuarial reports and assessed the qualification of the 
actuaries and the assumptions used. We also reviewed and performed audit procedures to verify the actuarial report input data 
for accuracy 

Salaries and benefits The School District’s salaries and benefits expense for the 2016 year was impacted by the implementation of two collective 
agreements relating to Canadian Union of Public Employees (CUPE) and the British Columbia Teachers’ Federation.  

In connection with our audit procedures related to payroll and related costs we reviewed the impact of the agreements on 
salaries and benefits expenses in the year including the current year addition of the economic stability dividend.  

 

  



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 6 

 

 

Critical accounting estimates  
Critical accounting estimates  

Asset / 
liability 

Balance 
($’000s) 

KPMG comment 

Tangible capital 
asset amortization 
rates 

$8,660 Amortization on tangible capital assets is based on the estimated useful lives of the underlying 
assets. 

We compared the estimated useful lives to the prior year, and assessed the amortization 
expense for reasonableness. 

Future costs to 
settle employee 
benefit obligations 

$177 The liability for employee future benefits is based on underlying actuarial assumptions. The 
estimate is subject to variability and measurement uncertainty including changes in actual future 
benefit costs realized and discount rates. 

We obtained the valuation report as prepared by management’s actuary, and reviewed the 
assumptions for reasonableness. 

Asset retirement 
obligation 

- The School District has several facilities that may contain asbestos. However, no asset retirement 
obligation has been recorded as the timing of the future demolition or renovation of the facilities 
is unknown and therefore the current value of the future obligation cannot be reasonably 
estimated.   

Under Public Sector 

Accounting Standards, 

management is required to 

disclose information in the 

financial statements about 

the assumptions it makes 

about the future, and other 

major sources of 

estimation uncertainty at 

the end of the reporting 

period, that have a 

significant risk of resulting 

in a material adjustment to 

carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities within the 

next financial year. 

Generally, these are 

considered to be “critical 

accounting estimates.” 

 



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 7 

 

 

Adjustments and differences  
Corrected adjustments 

We did not identifyified any accounting adjustments that were subsequently corrected by management.   During the course of our audit we 

did identify various financial statement disclosure recommendations that were reviewed with and adjusted by management. 

We did not identify any concerns regarding the form, arrangement and content of the financial statements in accordance with the financial 

reporting framework. 

Uncorrected differences 

Similar to other school districts in BC, we identified an uncorrected difference relating to the timing of amortization of tangible capital assets 

and deferred capital contributions, where figures are provided by the Ministry of Education’s amortization tool. The net impact of the timing 

difference is summarized below 

As at and year ended June 30, 2016 
Income 

effect 
Financial position 

 

Description  

of differences  

 

(Decrease) 

Increase 

Assets 

(Decrease) 

Increase 

Liabilities 

(Decrease) 

Increase 

Equity 

(Decrease) 

Increase 

Tangible capital assets and deferred capital revenue - Ministry of Education 

amortization tool 

(8,317) (148,732) (78,673) (61,742) 

Total  (8,317) (148,732) (78,673) (61,742) 

 

  

Adjustments and 

differences identified 

during the audit have been 

categorized as Corrected 

“adjustments” or 

Uncorrected “differences.” 

These include disclosure 

adjustments and 

differences. 

Professional standards 

require that we request of 

management and the 

Board that all identified 

adjustments or differences 

be corrected. We have 

already made this request 

of management. 

Summaries of corrected 

and uncorrected 

differences are included 

with the management 

representation letter in the 

appendices. 



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 8 

 

 

Appendices 
Appendix 1: Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Appendix 2: Current developments 

Appendix 3: Audit trends 

Appendix 4: Required communications 

Appendix 5: Audit Quality and Risk Management     

  



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 9 

 

 

Appendix 1: Internal control over financial reporting  
As your auditors, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control 

over financial reporting (ICFR) relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 

the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on internal control. 

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 

control. 

Our understanding of ICFR was for the limited purpose described above and was 

not designed to identify all control deficiencies that might be significant 

deficiencies and therefore, there can be no assurance that all significant 

deficiencies and other control deficiencies have been identified. Our awareness 

of control deficiencies varies with each audit and is influenced by the nature, 

timing, and extent of audit procedures performed, as well as other factors. 

Based on the results of our audit we did not identify any significant deficiencies or 

other performance observations related to ICFR. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 10 

 

 

Appendix 2: Current developments  
Please visit the Audit Committee Institute page for recent developments in Canadian auditing and other professional standards.   The following is a summary of relevant 

current developments: 

Standard Summary and implications 

Revenue 

 

• PSAB is proposing a single framework to categorize revenues to enhance the consistency of revenue 
recognition and its measurement.  A Statement of Principles was issued in 2013 and comments are 
currently under deliberation.   

• An exposure draft is under development and was released in the 4th quarter of 2014.  Adoption of these 
principles would result in a need to assess current accounting policies.  

• In the case of revenues arising from an exchange, a public sector entity must ensure the recognition of 
revenue aligns with the satisfaction of related performance obligations.  

• For unilateral revenues, recognition occurs when there is authority to record the revenue and an event 
has happened that gives the public sector entity the right to the revenue. 

Asset Retirement Obligations • A new standard is under development addressing the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of legal obligations associated with retirement of tangible capital assets in productive use.  
Retirement costs would be recognized as an integral cost of owning and operating tangible capital 
assets. PSAB current contains no specific guidance in this area. 

• In August 2014, a Statement of Principles was issued with responses and feedback solicited by 
November 2014. 

• PSAB is currently deliberating responses and an exposure draft is under development, expected for 
release in the 2016. 

 

 

  

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit/audit-committee-institute.html


School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 11 

 

 

Appendix 3: Audit trends  
KPMG understands the wide range of challenges and evolving trends that you face as the Board of Education of School District No. 10 We also understand that sometimes 

keeping up with critical issues as they emerge can be difficult.  

As your auditors, it is incumbent upon us to provide you with any information that will help you further strengthen corporate governance, enhance your oversight and add 
greater value within your organization.   

As such, KPMG's Audit Committee Institute (ACI) provides information, resources and opportunities for you to share knowledge with your peers. First, you are welcome to 
attend our Audit Committee Roundtable sessions, which are held in major cities across the country. In addition, you will also benefit from our monthly article series (Audit 
Point of View) and quarterly videos (FrontPage Video Series) that focus on the most pressing audit committee agenda items. 

More information on all of these can easily be found at www.kpmg.ca/audit.  

Our discussions with you, our audit opinion and what KPMG is seeing in the marketplace—both from an audit and industry perspective—indicate the following is specific 
information that will be of particular interest to the School District. We would, of course, be happy to further discuss this information with you at your convenience. 

Thought Leadership Overview Links 

 

In Better Outcomes for Public Services: Achieving social impact through 
outcomes-based funding, KPMG in Canada and The Mowat Centre identify 
some of the key obstacles to the implementation of outcome-based 
funding models and make a series of recommendations for how these 
challenges might be overcome. 

Better outcome for public services 

 

Technology has brought a revolution to the classroom and campus life, as 
well as the administration office. The challenge now is keeping up with an 
ever-accelerating pace of innovation. D&A is an emerging tool that is 
dramatically working its way into the fabric of education, again both 
administratively and academically. Administrators can use D&A to support 
budgeting, enrollment, and fundraising. Similarly, cloud technology can 
offer administrators benefits in terms of cost savings, while in the 
classroom provide students with easier access to a wider range of 
educational resources. 

2015-2016 Higher Education Industry 
Outlook Survey  

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit/audit-committee-institute.html
https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/insights/2016/04/audit-point-of-view.html
https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/insights/2016/04/audit-point-of-view.html
http://www.kpmg.ca/frontpage
http://www.kpmg.ca/audit
https://portal.amr.kworld.kpmg.com/ca/nsm/Industries/Provincial-Government/ThoughtLeadershipToolkits/TL%20-%20Better%20Outcomes%20for%20Public%20Services/better_outcomes_for_public_services.pdf
https://portal.ema.kworld.kpmg.com/GMC/TL/TL/US/2015/2015-2016-Higher-Education-Industry-Outlook-Survey.pdf
https://portal.ema.kworld.kpmg.com/GMC/TL/TL/US/2015/2015-2016-Higher-Education-Industry-Outlook-Survey.pdf
https://portal.amr.kworld.kpmg.com/ca/nsm/Industries/Provincial-Government/ThoughtLeadershipToolkits/TL%20-%20Better%20Outcomes%20for%20Public%20Services/better_outcomes_for_public_services.pdf


School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 12 

 

 

Appendix 4: Required communications  
In accordance with professional standards, there are a number of communications that are required during the course of and upon completion of our audit. These include: 

– Auditors’ report – the conclusion of our audit is set out in our draft auditors’ 

report attached to the draft financial statements. 

– Audit Findings report – summarizing the key findings and results of our 

audit. 

– Engagement letter – a copy of the engagement letter received is included 

as part of the appendix 

– Management representation letter –In accordance with professional 

standards, copies of the management representation letter are provided to 

the Board of Education. The management representation letter is attached. 

  







































SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 (ARROW LAKES)
98 SIXTH AVENUE NW
NAKUSP, BC  V0G 1R0

KPMG LLP 
200-3200 Richter Street
Kelowna, BC  V1W 5K9
Canada

September 13, 2016

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as "financial statements") of
School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) ("the Entity") as at and for the period ended June 30, 2016.

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as set out
in Attachment I to this letter. 

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

GENERAL:

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the engagement letter dated June 30,
2016, for:

a) the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and believe that these financial
statements have been prepared and present fairly in accordance with the relevant financial
reporting framework

b) providing you with all relevant information, such as all financial records and related data and
complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have
not yet been prepared, of shareholders, board of directors and committees of the board of
directors that may affect the financial statements, and access to such relevant information

c) such internal control as management determined is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

d) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in
the financial statements

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:

2) We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or maintenance of
internal control over financial reporting of which management is aware. 

FRAUD & NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS:

3) We have disclosed to you:

a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud



Page 2

b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the
Entity and involves: management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements

c) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Entity’s
financial statements, communicated by employees, former employees,  regulators, or others

d) all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations,
including all aspects of contractual agreements, whose effects should be considered when
preparing financial statements

e) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements

COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES: 

4) There are no:

a) other liabilities that are required to be recognized and no other contingent assets or contingent
liabilities that are required to be disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework, including liabilities or contingent liabilities arising from
illegal acts or possible illegal acts, or possible violations of human rights legislation

b) guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Entity is contingently liable

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

5) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant financial
reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements have been adjusted
or disclosed.

RELATED PARTIES:

6) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties.

7) We have disclosed to you all the related party relationships and transactions/balances of which we
are aware.

8) All related party relationships and transactions/balances have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework.

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS:

9) The employee future benefits costs and obligations have been determined, accounted for, and
disclosed in accordance with the financial reporting framework.

10) All arrangements (contractual and otherwise) by which programs have been established to provide
employee benefits have been disclosed to you and included in the determination of employee future
benefits costs and obligations. 

11) The discount rate used to determine the accrued employee future benefit obligation was determined
by reference to market interest rates at the measured date on high-quality debt instruments with cash
flows that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments; or inherent in the amount at
which the accrued benefit obligation could be settled. 

12) The source data and plan provisions provided to the actuary for preparation of the actuarial valuation
are accurate and complete.



Page 3

ESTIMATES:

13) Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates,
including those measured at fair value, are reasonable. 

NON-SEC REGISTRANTS OR NON-REPORTING ISSUERS:

14) We confirm that the Entity is not a Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any applicable
Canadian securities act) and is not a United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
Issuer (as defined by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002). We also confirm that the financial statements
of the Entity will not be included in the consolidated financial statements of a Canadian reporting
issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC Issuer audited by any member of the KPMG organization.

MISSTATEMENTS:

15) The effects of the uncorrected misstatements described in Attachment II are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. 

Yours very truly,

I have the recognized authority to take, and assert that I have taken, responsibility for the financial
statements

                                                                                                                 
By: Ms. Terry Taylor, Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer



Page 4

Attachment I – Definitions

MATERIALITY

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate,
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements. Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are
affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both.

FRAUD & ERROR

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or
disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users. 

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets.  It is often accompanied by false or
misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have been
pledged without proper authorization.

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an amount or a
disclosure.  

RELATED PARTIES 

In accordance with Canadian accounting standards for the public sector (PSAB) related party is defined as: 

 A related party exists when one party has the ability to exercise control or shared control over the other.

Two or more parties are related when they are subject to common control or shared control. Related

parties also include key management personnel and close family members.

In accordance with Canadian accounting standards for the public sector (PSAB) a related party transaction
is defined as: 

 A related party transaction is a transfer of economic resources or obligations between related parties, or

the provision of services by one party to a related party. These transfers are related party transactions

whether or not there is an exchange of considerations or transactions have been given accounting

recognition. The parties to the transaction are related prior to the transaction. When the relationship

arises as a result of the transaction, the transaction is not one between related parties.



School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016  

 

 

Appendix 5: Audit Quality and Risk Management  
KPMG maintains a system of quality control designed to reflect our drive and determination to deliver independent, unbiased advice and opinions, and also meet the 

requirements of Canadian professional standards.  

Quality control is fundamental to our business and is the responsibility of every partner and employee. The following diagram summarises the six key elements of our 

quality control systems.  

Visit our Audit Quality Resources page for more information including access to our audit quality report, Audit quality: Our hands-on process. 

  

Independence, 
integrity, ethics 
and objectivity 

Personnel 
management 

Acceptance & 
continuance of 

clients / 
engagements 

Engagement 
performance 

standards 

Independent 
monitoring 

Other risk 
management 

quality controls 

– Other controls include: 

– Before the firm issues its audit 

report, the Engagement Quality 

Control Reviewer reviews the 

appropriateness of key elements 

of publicly listed client audits. 

– Technical department and 

specialist resources provide real-

time support to audit teams in the 

field. 

– We conduct regular reviews of 
engagements and partners. 
Review teams are independent 
and the work of every audit 
partner is reviewed at least once 
every three years. 

– We have policies and guidance to 
ensure that work performed by 
engagement personnel meets 
applicable professional standards, 
regulatory requirements and the 
firm’s standards of quality. 

– All KPMG partners and staff are 
required to act with integrity and 
objectivity and comply with 
applicable laws, regulations and 
professional standards at all 
times. 

– We do not offer services that would 
impair our independence. 

– The processes we employ to help 
retain and develop people include: 

– Assignment based on skills and 

experience;  

– Rotation of partners; 

– Performance evaluation;  

– Development and training; and 

– Appropriate supervision and 

coaching. 

– We have policies and procedures 
for deciding whether to accept or 
continue a client relationship or to 
perform a specific engagement for 
that client. 

– Existing audit relationships are 
reviewed annually and evaluated to 
identify instances where we should 
discontinue our professional 
association with the client. 

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit/audit-quality-resources.html
http://www.kpmg.com/Ca/en/services/Audit/Documents/Audit-Quality-Control-Report-2015-Final-web.pdf


School District No. 10 (Arrow Lakes) Audit Findings Report for the year ended June 30, 2016  

 

 

KPMG LLP, an Audit, Tax and Advisory firm (kpmg.ca) and a Canadian limited liability partnership established under the laws of Ontario, is the Canadian member firm of KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”). 

 KPMG member firms around the world have 174,000 professionals, in 155 countries. 

The independent member firms of the KPMG network are affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss entity. Each KPMG firm is a legally distinct and separate entity, and describes itself as such. 

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

kpmg.ca/audit 



Chairperson’s Report to September 13th, 2016  

(Presented by Vice-Chair, Quinn de Courcy)  

 

Welcome back! Sorry to be missing our first meeting. 
 
The Board held a successful strategic planning weekend in August. 
 

1. Board Strategic Planning Retreat was held – August 22 and 23rd  

 Review of Board Successes  

o Successes innovative practices, quality teaching, caring community, inquiry-

based learning, partnerships, diversity, project-based learning, collaboration, 

professional learning, student success, transition to the workplace and post-

secondary, budget process, solid financial management, opportunities for all 

students, ability to take risks and innovate were all identified as successes.  

o Success in accomplishing in all 4 goal areas identified in the 2013-2016 Strategic 

Plan was reviewed with evidence of each goal area:  

 1) Enhance Communication,  

 2) Transform and Enhance Information Technologies,  

 3) Improve Student Achievement and  

 4) Enhance Community Involvement  

 District Mission Statement and Values and Beliefs  

 Trustee Roles and Responsibilities. 8 Characteristics of Effective Boards, Team 

Leadership, Governance Models   

 Superintendent/ST Role and Job Description was ratified and agreed upon 

 Superintendent’s Performance Review process  

o In addition to the quarterly performance review reports with evidence of 

performance that are presented by the S/ST to the Board, the Board has agreed to 

hire an external consultant to conduct interviews with individuals and groups this 

school year and to periodically conduct an external review  

o A protocol for an external review process will be developed  

 Board Goals and Priorities for the year  

o Policy Review  

o Budget Consultation Process 

o Strategic Planning Process – planning completed by June 2017 and plan by 2018 

o New Curriculum, Assessment and Reporting  

o New Enhancing Student Learning Framework (SG Plans and District Plan for 

Learning)  

o Review of International Education and Burton Academy School programs  

o External S/ST Performance Review  

 2016-17 Board Calendar  

 Planning for 3-5 year Strategic Plan 

 

2.  Ministry Teleconferences  

There were 2 Board Chair teleconferences with the Minister of Education over the summer  
 one regarded the transportation announcement, which will give our district 

$42,675.  
 The second call was regarding anti-bullying policies – each district must have in 

place by Dec 31 of this year with special reference to sexual orientation and gender 
identity aligned with the new Human Rights legislation in BC  

 
3. KBB Branch - The Board will attend the Annual General Meeting of the Kootenay 
Boundary Branch of BC School Trustees at St Eugene’s in SD 5. 



4.  Valhalla Fine Arts Society has approached the Board Chair re: a partnership agreement. 
The Society uses Lucerne School each summer for the Valhalla Summer School of Music, 
Valhalla Intensive Theatre School, Peak Dance, Music Explorers and Suzuki Valhalla 
Institute and covers all costs for additional custodians. Steps to follow up regarding this 
potential partnership inquiry were shared with the VFS representative.  
 
 5. Board Chair will attend BCSTA Elections Committee and report to KBB  



NES StrongStart 
 Early Learning Centre 

Monthly Report 
 

 As the end of September I will have 49 students enrolled, 2012 – 

9 students, 2013 – 12 students, 2014 – 13 students, 2015 – 10 

students and 2016 – 5 students.   

 StrongStart opened up on Wednesday September 7th from 9:00 

am to 12:00 pm.  We had a busy morning with 25 children and 19 

families. 

 NES StrongStart hours are:  Monday/Wednesday/Friday from 

8:45 – 11:45 am and Tuesday/Thursday from 12:30 to 3:30 pm. 

 Last year mornings were very busy with an average of 20 children 

plus parents, and afternoons were 3 to 7 children.  On Thursday 

September 8th we had 12 families and 17 children, so it looks like 

our afternoons may be busy too. 

 Our daily schedule consists of free play, arts and craft, clean up, 

snack, gym, circle time, play and good byes. 

 Monday and Friday we have gym time from 10:10 to 10:40 am. 

 Wednesday’s we have library time at 11:00 am. 

 Friday’s at 11:00 am we will be participating in Music time in the 

gym with the primary classes. 

 On Thursday’s from 9:00 am to 11:45 the StrongStart Centre is 

used by the CAPC program that runs a program called Pitter 

Patter. This program is for families with children from ages 0 to 

2 ½ years of age. 

 Once a month we usually get a visit from the Childcare Resource 

and Referral from Nelson who will come and bring supplies, toys 

to borrow, and who will lend toys to families, and will help with 

childcare and subsidy. 



 On Thursday September 15th, we will be visited by Sherry 

Tolman, (Supported Childcare Development & Infant 

Development) 

 On September 22nd, Mara Sands from Nelson (Interior Health) 

will be at StrongStart to do her lift the lip program. 

 I have a Nakusp Early Years face book page.  On this page I put 

any info regarding programs in our community, and any upcoming 

events.  We have over 65 members. 

 

Respectfully written by Nancy Bone  

September 9th, 2016. 



 

Superintendent’s Report – September 13th , 2016  

1 

  
 

 
 

    Welcome to our New Staff, Students and Parents; Welcome Back to those Returning  
 

 It’s been a great start to the new school year at all SD 10 schools! 
Here are our new staff, and our returning staff in new positons:   
NSS:  
New to the district  

 Peter Gajda – Principal  
 Sheena Delong – Art and Aboriginal Education Support 
 Shanny McIvor - PE and Social Studies  

 
BAS:  
New Assignment 

 Michael Myhal - .2 Hands-On Learning and Technology Education 
 
 
NES:  
New Assignments 

           September 13th, 2016  
           Superintendent/Secretary Treasurer Report         
              Presented at the Education Partnership Committee,    
                 and Regular Meeting of the Board of Education 

            

 

  2016-17 Enrollment Notes:  

 June 2016 – 466 students included 47 DL students; DL enrollment grows over the course of the school year as 
more Grade 10-12 students complete courses. 24 K-9 home-based learners is an increase from all previous years.  

 Burton Academy has 10 students registered in the Outdoor Education/Entrepreneurship Academy; MyEd BC 
doesn’t show enrollment at two brick and mortar schools so NSS is chosen as the “home school” 

 Lucerne School – 5 Somalian refugee children will be arriving shortly in Grades 1-4  

 Trend at NSS, NES and Lucerne is larger classes exiting in Grade 7 (NES) and Grade 12 (NSS/Lucerne) than 
children entering Kindergarten which means decline in enrollment, yet, numbers are actually pretty stable compared 
to projections; more elementary children overall  

 Strong Start (0-4 year olds with parents) currently shows 39 at Nakusp, 20 in New Denver and 25 in Southern Zone  

 District is closely monitoring Public Health, Strong Start and pre-school enrollment to better forecast 



 

Superintendent’s Report – September 13th , 2016  

2 
 Joseph Baron – Principal  
 Biz Tupper – Grade 7  
 Anita Vibe (.6) and Sally McLean (.4) – Grade 5/6 

            New CUPE Regular Positions 
 Carol Fox – Education Assistant 
 Paula Burns – Education Assistant           
 Nancy Bone – Strong Start Coordinator 

 
LESS:  
New to the district (and Returning) 

 Trish Hawkins – Principal  
 Chelsea Lada – Grade K/1  

New Assignments 
 Kristin Kipkie – Learning Resource Teacher and Aboriginal Education Support 
 Patrick MacGibbon – Music and Band  
 Chaez Johnsin - Education Assistant 
 Eva Shandro - Program Assistant 

  
EES:  
New to the district 

 Michael Hibberson – Principal  
 Sheena Delong – .2 Fine Arts and .05 Aboriginal Education  

New Assignment 
 Michael Myhal .2  

New CUPE Regular Position 
 Nora Currie – Custodian  

            Welcome Back to EES 
 JoAnne Alaric – Secretary and Library Clerk 

 New District Staff: 
 Lorna Newman, Director of Learning  

 
2. Revised K-9 Curriculum and Interim Reporting Order  
 Teachers in SD 10 continue to embark on implementing the new K-9 curriculum in their 

indoor and outdoor classrooms across the district. There is lots of support planned:  
o a Curriculum Support Day is planned for Monday, November 14th with Faye Brownlie 

focused on Literacy, Collaboration and Assessment for Learning along with assessment 
workshop choices designed by teachers on the Educational Transformation Committee 

o a Professional Development Day on September 26th in Inquiry with Drs. Judy Halbert 
and Linda Kaser along with teacher-designed options for professional learning 

o Professional Learning teams offered throughout the year focus on the revised curriculum 
and assessment practices in Math, Literacy, Coding and Technology, and Engaging all 
Learners  

o Conversations with staff, students and parents about classroom assessment and 
communication and reporting on student learning will happen throughout the year  
 
 

3. Somalian Refugee Children to Join Lucerne  
 In mid-July this year, the district was informed that the Slocan Valley Refugee Coalition had 

been matched with a Somalian family who have lived for the past ten years in a refugee 
camp in Kenya 



 

Superintendent’s Report – September 13th , 2016  

3 
 The family brings with them, their five children aged 3- 9 and another 9 year old, the sister of 

the mother; we anticipate that the family will arrive in September  
 Lucerne School staff and students are busy preparing to welcome the 5 new children to the 

school, and the 3 year old boy and parents to the New Denver Strong Start Centre 
 Thanks to the Refugee Coalition for their efforts in planning for and raising funds to keep this 

refugee family housed, clothed and cared for in our community  
 English language learning skills will be assessed once the children arrive at school, and if 

required, an ELL teacher will be hired to assist in learning English 
 

4. Transportation Funding  
 The Superintendent and Manager of Operations and Transportation are applying for SD 10’s 

share of the new transportation funding announced two weeks ago; applications are due 
September 30th, 2017  

 This funding is intended to assist districts with the higher costs of transportation incurred over 
the past years; in many districts, transportation services to students have been cut 

 In SD 10, we have preserved equity and access to transportation for children and families, 

ensuring that walk limits are lower than the provincial minimums, bus routes have been 

maintained for over 7 years, with no fees charged and no reductions of bus drivers. 

Instead, we have made administration reductions in other areas of our budget.  

 As a result, our Transportation Funding application will highlight coverage of some 

bussing costs for curricular field trips in support of the revised K-9 curriculum and some 

of the costs incurred by our strong district support of extra-curricular travel. 

Transportation assistance to families living more than 4.5 km from their school not 

served by a school bus will continue, and subsidies for Kindergarten children attending 

part days as they transition to Kindergarten will also be covered.  

 

5. Electrical Apprentice  

 A former NSS graduate, Taylor Aeichele, has applied to the school district to become a 

2nd year electrical apprentice  

 The district has applied for CBT SchoolWorks Apprenticeship funding and also to the ITA 

to support Ms. Aeichele’s apprenticeship wages, EI and CPP costs 

 In addition, a local business person will subsidize and top up Ms. Aeichele’s wage if the 

proposal is accepted 

 Many thanks to Ashely Emery, district Journeyman Electrician and to CUPE 2450 for their 

support of this program designed to help build apprenticeship opportunities locally  

 

6. Attendance and Wellness Consultant   

 Shari Featherstone, a highly experienced disability management consultant who has 



 

Superintendent’s Report – September 13th , 2016  

4 

worked with PEBT’s JEIS program (Joint Early Intervention Services) has been hired to 

assist the district with attendance and wellness support  

 Shari is hired through the district’s shared service agreement with the Okanagan Labour 

Relations Council and has a one year contract to assist districts in the OLRC with an 

audit of current practices and processes, support enhancing these supports to 

employees, and recommendations for attendance wellness initiatives  

 

7. UBC West Kootenay Teacher Education Program   

 37 WKTEP teacher candidates join the UBC teacher ed program based in Nelson this year 

 Interest in SD 10 practicum placements from pre-service teachers is strong this year: a 

secondary Science student, secondary Social Studies student and likely two intermediate 

student teachers are seeking SD 10 teacher mentors 

 All 37 WKTEPers will be in classrooms throughout SD 10 in three consecutive weeks as 

the new “in situ” model launches this fall – September 20th, 29th and October 3rd are the 

dates  

 WKTEP pre-service teachers will work with SD 10 staff on community building, class 

reviews, and fall literacy assessments to inform teaching and learning; they will also teach 

their first short lesson in the class to which they are assigned 

 A giant thank you to the twelve SD 10 teachers who have volunteered to open the doors 

of their classrooms to the teacher candidates in this first round of “in situ” learning 

sessions!!! 

 

8. $10,000 Design Thinking Grant Approved  

 SD 10’s application for a Large Scale ArtStarts grant has been approved  

 Starting in September, with artistic residencies happening in schools across the district, 

the Design Thinking: Making a Difference in the World project celebrates 13 local artists 

who will work with children and youth in artistic genres from pottery to timber frame 

building 

 Dr. Susan Crichton, from UBC-Okanagan will help launch the initiative with a Maker 

design challenge tournament involving students, staff and artists and also frame the 

notion of empathic design and design thinking  

 Design thinking involves consideration of the end user with an empathic focus – making 

and designing products which solve authentic problems. Prototypes and iterative designs 



 

Superintendent’s Report – September 13th , 2016  

5 

are created before any making takes place.  

 13 artist, maker and builder residencies will be scheduled from November to May with 

culminating showings of final prototypes and design processes held in the communities 

of Edgewood, Nakusp and New Denver on May 18th  

 

9. New SD 10 films launched 

 Four new films celebrating teaching and learning in small-is-amazing SD 10 have now 

been completed and are available on our SD 10 Arrow Lakes YouTube channel and also 

on the district website at http://sd10.bc.ca/video 

1. Garden, Greenhouse and Sustainability focuses on the pre-school, Strong Start and 

K-12 programs at Lucerne School connected to the school garden, greenhouse and 

sustainability initiatives. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TB3m1ec26fc  

2. Taking Care of Community: Collaborative Environmental Stewardship features two 

Nakusp Elementary teachers share their work co-teaching Grade 5/6 students in 

inquiry projects focused on taking action in community. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fJKDFy8GKh0  

3. Solar Energy Project showcases the hands-on and technology learning experiences 

involved in the installation of NES and Lucerne’s solar panels last fall. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=O3MaTds1LAQ 

4. Technology in the Wild: Primary Students Explore their Place shares Edgewood 

Elementary School’s outdoor classroom. K-3 students inquire about animal habitat 

and animal needs in the forest using game cameras to record animals’ presence.  

 

 

10. SEP (School Enhancement Program) Funding   

 The Ministry of Education announced an additional $20,000,000 of funding for school 

improvement capital projects with a deadline for applications of September 15th  

 SD 10’s application includes requests for  

 1) emergency lighting and sprinkler upgrades  

 2) flooring at Nakusp Secondary (gym) and Nakusp Elementary and  

 3) heating and ventilation upgrades at Nakusp Elementary  

 4) solar panels at Nakusp Elementary 

 

http://sd10.bc.ca/video
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TB3m1ec26fc
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fJKDFy8GKh0
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=O3MaTds1LAQ


 

Superintendent’s Report – September 13th , 2016  

6 

11. Five Year Capital Plan Draft 

 Susan Brenna-Smith, Director of Finance, Art Olson, Manager of Operations and 

Transportation and Superintendent/ST Taylor have been working on our five year capital 

plan submission due to the Ministry September 30th  

 The Capital Plan report is now much more extensive with many areas of capital plan 

funding requests rolled into a single submission 

 SD 10 Capital Plan priorities include School Enhancement Program (SEP) requests: 1) 

roofing at NSS, 2) heating and ventilation at NES and BAS, Carbon Neutral Capital 

Program (CNCP) requests: 1) Solar panels at NES, NSS and EES; Bus Replacement 

Program request: replacement of Bus 6100 due to corrosion and maintenance issues 

 

12. New School Bus for Eastern Zone Route 

 Our new 60 passenger school bus has just arrived in the district and will serve the Hills-

New Denver-Silverton route  

 This bus is a replacement for the propane bus which had ongoing engine problems ever 

since its purchase 

 The Ministry authorized replacement of the propane vehicle with a new diesel bus 

 In addition, $15,000 from the sale of the propane bus has been approved by the Ministry 

to go into SD 10’s restricted capital surplus fund 

 In all, we now have three new busses in the district – one on the Edgewood route, one in 

Nakusp, and the new New Denver bus!  

       

13. Strong Start Review at Lucerne – October 6th and 7th   

 A team of 4 researchers is coming from the University of Toronto to conduct research 

interviews and a focus group with Strong Start Coordinator, Charlene “Bean” Alexander 

and parents 

 Director of the Office of the Early Years, Tessa Graham, and Superintendent of Early 

Learning, Maureen Dockendorf, will also attend the review  

 New Denver Strong Start is one of ten sites chosen for this research across BC as a result 

of its innovative community partnerships and flexible evening/after school hours amongst 

other practices 
 

14.  Part-time District Healthy Schools Coordinator  
 New IHA (Interior Health Authority) funding for a part-time one day per week Healthy Schools 

Coordinator has allowed us to hire Ms. Heather French as our new HSC 



 

Superintendent’s Report – September 13th , 2016  

7 
 Heather has begun working with Lorna Newman, Director of Learning on a draft plan to 

address three district health needs identified: nutrition, substance misuse and mental health 
 Ms. French will visit schools and talk to staff shortly as she launches this new health program 

which will augment our existing healthy schools initiatives   



Related Legislation and/or Documents:  Page 1 of 1 
Policy No. 412 Reviewed: 16 September 2016 
Adopted: 19-June-1984   
Amended: 13-September-2016 History of Dates Amended: 11-October-2005   

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.10 (ARROW LAKES) 
POLICY MANUAL  
 
412 – Evaluation of the Superintendent of Schools /  
  Secretary-Treasurer  
 

 

 
1.0      General  
 

1.1     The Board of Education shall supervise and evaluate their one employee, the 
Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer, in accordance with the provisions of the 
employment contract of the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer. 

 
1.2     Evaluation and performance review of the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer 

shall be based on a growth and learning mindset. 
 
2.0      Performance Review Format 
 

2.1     Regular ongoing review of the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer’s 
performance shall be conducted by the Board of Education using a format and 
criteria developed in consultation with the Superintendent/Secretary-
Treasurer. 

 
2.2     Review of the Superintendent/Secretary-Treasurer’s performance shall be 

based on evidence of her work and performance in the role 
 

 
 
 



Related Legislation and/or Other Documents:  N/A Page 1 of 1 
Policy No. 370 Reviewed: 16 September 2016 
Adopted: 24-June-1986  
Amended: 13-Sept-2016  History of Dates Amended: 18-December-2001 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.10 (ARROW LAKES) 
POLICY MANUAL  
 
370 – Field Trips  
 
 

 
1.0      General  
 

1.1     The Board of School Trustees affirms the educational value of well-planned and 
supervised curricular and extra-curricular field trips.   

 
1.2 The primary purpose of these trips should be to enhance the educational 

experiences of the participants.  These experiences enrich the curriculum and 
provide opportunities for young people to develop their intellectual, social and 
physical capabilities. 

 
1.3 A field trip hand booked, developed to assist teachers and school administrators 

in the proper preparation and facilitation of field trips will be made available to 
district staff and to the general public.  

 
2.0      Related Policy  
 

2.1     Field trips are an extension of school, therefore school rules and district policy 
will be adhered to for all extra-curricular and curricular field trips.  The 
following are district policies that apply.  

 2.1.1 Policy 310: Student Conduct and Discipline 
 2.1.2 Policy 311: Student Conduct While Riding a School Bus 
 2.1.3 Policy 340: Fees for Students 
 

3.0 Educational Criteria 
 
  3.1 The field trip relates to and enhances the school program. 
 
  3.2 Educational value is demonstrated in the planning and field trip. 
 
  3.3 The field trip is appropriate to the physical, social, emotional and mental 

development of the students. 
 
  3.4 The field trip encourages curriculum integration and articulation. 
 
  3.5 The field trip demonstrates clearly stated objectives.  
 
  3.6 The educational benefit is such that it warrants the travel, time and money 

required to make the excursion a quality experience.  
 
  3.7 Health and safety factors are considered. 
 

 
 


	SD 10AFR-final.pdf
	Executive summary
	Purpose of this report*
	Materiality
	Areas of focus and results
	Adjustments and differences
	Independence

	Executive summary
	Finalizing the audit
	Significant accounting estimates
	Significant accounting policies and practices

	Areas of focus
	Critical accounting estimates
	Critical accounting estimates
	Corrected adjustments
	Uncorrected differences

	Appendices
	Appendix 1: Internal control over financial reporting
	Appendix 2: Current developments
	Appendix 3: Audit trends
	Appendix 4: Required communications
	Appendix 5: Audit Quality and Risk Management




